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The F. Arnold Polson House is located at the north end of the front portion of the
original Alex Polson Homestead in Hoquiam. The Colonial Revival House faces southeast
toward the open expanse of the lawn and gardens, most of which are part of the original
grounds. The property fronts on Riverside Avenue, a major highway which runs along the
Hoquiam River.

The Alex Polson House, built in the 1890's, was razed in 1939 after his death, but its
foundation is still in place. Remains of an early pool and gazebo are also on the
property. The grounds contain many turn of the century native and exotic trees and
shrubs planted by the senior Polson to enhance his estate. In the Springtime, the hill-
side still displays flowers of many of the original rhododendrons and azaleas.

The existing building was constructed in 1923 as a home for F. Arnold Polson, son of
the original pioneers. It wa$ given to the youngér Polsor-and his new wife by-his
bachelor uncle, Robert Polson, as a wedding-gift: E T :

The home was designed by Arthur Loveless, a well known Seattle architect. The two story
structure is of nearly symmetrical Colonial design. The main body of the building is
rectangular. Shallower wings extend from both ends. A one and one-half story garage
wing extends further from the northeast end. Centered on the lower level is a simple
classical porte cochere with steps leading up to the main entrance. On either side of
the entrance are two large multi-paned double hung windows with arched surrounds and
"keystones".

The house was built entirely of wood from Polson-owned mills. Until recently, the founda-
tion consisted of large 12 x' 12 timbers resting on tilted double pilings which were

driven into the alluvial soil. Concrete supporting piers have now replaced the rotted
upper portions of the pilings. '~ -~ ' " SR .

The roof is covered with 24 inch Royal red cedar shingles. A layer of fireproof asphaltic
concrete shingles was added in the 1930's, leaving the original shingles in place. The

exterior walls are still covered with the original shingles.

The Polson family owned the Eureka Lumber and Shingle Mill and only the very finest
Tumber was used in the construction. Skilled carpenters in the employ of the company
under the direction of Master Builder Ben Brunstad completed the house.

There are 26 rooms and an immense attic. The structure contains 6500 square feet.

Throughout the house, floors are hemlock which runs from wall to wall without break.
Boards in the 1living room are 30 feet in length. The flooring is in almost new condition.

The entrance hallway features a sweeping staircase with a curving mahogany banister and
a tall mullioned window at the landing. An open elevator in the staircase opening once
carried people to the second floor. The original elevator is scheduled to be returned

in the future. '

There are four fireplaces located one each in the 1iving room, den, master bedroom suite,
and guest suite. A1l have Italian tile facing and feature stripes at the openings.
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A11 bathrooms contain the original fixtures which are the large pedestal lavatory type.

The original o0il furnace located in the garage wing is still in operation. Its under-
ground storage tank is a huge oiltank car from one of the Polson's logging operations.

The home and property was given to the City of Hoquiam by Mrs. F. Arnold Polson in June
of 1976. The same month the Polson Park and Historical Society was incorporated as a
non-profit organization.

In the restoration work Targely completed, the wallpaper is in keeping with the designs
used at the time of construction, a stripe in the Tiving room, pastoral scene for the
hallway and flocked paper in the dining room.

The City Park Department is in charge of yard maintenance and volunteer help continues
to improve and maintain the building.

In addition the Grays Harbor Rose Society has planted the Burnt Rose Memorial Rose
Garden and plan to enlarge it.

The Grays Harbor Rhododendron Society is in charge of landscaping the grounds around
the museum proper.
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The F. Arnold Polson House is associated with one of the most prominent early lumbering
families in western Washington. The 1923 house, which is located next to the site of
the elder Polson's residence, was designed by one of Seattle's most respected architects
of the period. Although its Colonial design is simple, features such as its 24 inch
Royal red cedar roofing and cedar.shingle siding,-its 30 foot.long continuous hemlock
flooring, and timber on double piling foundation,.make.it a’ unpique architectural land-
mark in Hoquiam. '

Arthur Loveless, Architect

Edward and Harriett Campbell platted what is known as Campbell's Addition to the City
of Hoquiam about 1880. The plat was not officially accepted and recorded until 1891
but many lots were sold based on the unrecorded plat. Riverside Avenue was the main
throughfare on this plat and on it were located many of the homes of pioneer Hoquiam
families, including Alex and E1la Polson. Polson was always known as Alex rather than
Alexander. The area was beautified with native and exotic trees and shrubs and it soon
became a showplace of the area. Some Redwoods were planted about 1900. Rhododendrons
and azaleas were planted on the hillside. When Alex Polson died in 1939 his widow had
their home razed rather than allowing anyone else to. live in it. o

Earlier, by various conveyances, Alex and Ella Polson had acquired the adjoining lots
and in 1923 they conveyed several lots to their son and daughter-in-law, F. Arnold and
Priscilla Polson. At that time the present home was constructed. .. -

Alex Polson was born to Scottish parents in Nova Scotia in 1853. He made~his way west
and eventually settled in the Grays Harbor area.

In 1884 he established the Polson Logging Company in Hoquiam which he controlled jointly
with his brother Robert after 1886. It became one of the largest logging companies in

the world. Eventually the company was sold in the 1950's to Rayonier Inc., the predecessor
of ITT-Rayonier, the present owner of most former Polson interests.

Alex Polson was an innovator in logging methods. He brought the first steel felling-saw
and steel wedges into the territory. He also built the first log-driving splash dam in
Western Washington near Willipa Bay and another shortly thereafter across the Chehalis
River in Hoquiam.

He was associated with manyother timber related firms in Grays Harbor including Eureka
Lumber and Shingle Company where he served as vice-president with his brother, Robert,

as president. Polson was Hoquiam's first tax assessor serving from 1884-1886. He also
Served one term as a state senator from 1907-1911. He pushed for investigation of graft
in government and worked for the institution of prohibition. He was instrumental in with-
drawing twenty sections of school timber land from sale ensuring incorie for the state
school fund. He was also a member of the commission which planned the state capitol and
other buildings.
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He and his wife E11a had two sons who both carried on in the lumbering business in Grays
Harbor County and a daughter: Franklyn Arnold who owned the subject property, Charles
Stewart, and Kathryn Dorothy.

Arthur Loveless practiced architecture in Seattle and western Washington from 1910 until
1934. He studied architecture af Columbia University but never received an undergraduate
degree. He is especially noted for his English Tudor "Country" homes but also worked
extensively in the Georgian and Colonial styles. His residences are noted for there
spacious rooms, their large mullioned windows which give a 1ight open quality, and their
close orientation to exterior gardens. These are all features evident at the F. Arnold
Polson House.

His best known work is the Loveless Studio Building apartments and shops, 711 Broadway,
a Seattle Landmark and A.I.A. award winner. He also designed the Gate Lodge at the
University of Washington Arboretum, The University Repertory Playhouse (Glenn Hughes
Theatre), and two fraternities at the University.

His numerous homes, some. in collaboration with Clayton Wilson, include that of Alexander
Pantages at 117 36th Avenue East; the Sparkman House, 620 West Howe; his own home, now
the Fred Hutchinson House, 7126 55th Avenue South; all in Seattle and the Dempsey Cot-
tage on American Lake in Tacoma.
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Prosser, William F. History of the Puget Sound Country VI, New York:
Lewis Publishing Co. 1903 pp. 346-347.
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